


a. A.R.S. § 32-3251(16)(n), failing to comply with or violating, attempting to violate or assisting in 
or abetting the violation of any provision of this chapter, any rule adopted pursuant to this 
chapter, any lawful order of the board, or any formal order, consent agreement, term of probation 
or stipulated agreement issued under this chapter. 

b. A.R.S. § 32-3251(16)(l), engaging in any conduct, practice or condition that impairs the ability 
of the licensee to safely and competently practice the licensee’s profession. 

16. On 11/14/23, Applicant signed the consent agreement, surrendering his license. 
17. Between 01/31/24 – 04/05/24, Applicant began reaching out to Board staff regarding reapplying for 

licensure. 
18. Applicant was initially cordial and apologetic for his conduct and behaviors. 
19. On 04/15/24, Applicant submitted an LMSW application. 
20. Starting on 04/18/24, Applicant began emailing Board staff, once again making accusations of 

racism and using profanity. 
21. In his email, Applicant questioned individuals advertising on Psychology Today without a license, if 

he could advertise as a life coach, and that Board staff hack community members. 
22. In a 04/19/24 email, he shared a Google review, once again making comments of racism in the 

mental health field and in the Board, noting the following, in part: 
a. “Please expose this racism from the Arizona Board and older white clinicians who still think 

they can own slaves.” 
b. “All of you, are a bunch of clowns running a circus and the biggest joke to society.”  

23. In a 04/24/24 email to the Board’s Executive Director and Board staff, he notes Board staff is 
worthless and uses profanity. 

24. Applicant also submitted Google questions to the Board noting the following: 
a. “AZ Board members hack good clinicians and pass their progress notes to their counterpart 

clinicians so they can learn therapy. If you don’t have friends who work for the board good luck 
getting license or even having job. The worst people” 

b. “Bunch of keyboard warriors hide behind a computer and never been in front of patient. All you 
do is hacked clinicians and never been out in the field.” 

25. Since submitting his application, Applicant has not completed the previously ordered evaluation and 
hair follicle drug test. 

26. Applicant’s interactions with Board staff and pattern of behavior have not changed since 
surrendering his license.  

 
Notice of Appealable Agency Action: 

  
Pursuant to A.R.S. § 41.1092.03 (B), you may request a formal hearing by notifying the Board, in writing, 
within 35 days from the date of this letter. The hearing will be held within 60 days after the Board receives 
your request. (A.R.S. § 41-1092.05)(A)) At the hearing, you will have the burden of proof to demonstrate 
that you are qualified for licensure regarding the matters set forth above.  The Office of the Attorney General 
will represent the State of Arizona at the hearing. In addition, if you request a hearing, you have the right to 
request a settlement conference. (A.R.S. § 41-1092.06) Please note that if you do not request a hearing by the 
close of business on June 20, 2024, your file will be closed without recourse to appeal. If you desire 
licensure in the future you will be required to submit a new application and fee. Please be further advised that 
pursuant to the Board’s licensure statutes only persons holding licenses to practice behavioral health may do 
so unless they are exempt from licensure pursuant to A.R.S. § 32-3271. 
  

Notice to Licensure Applicant: 
  
Pursuant to A.R.S. § 41-1093.01, an agency shall limit all occupational regulations to regulations that are 
demonstrated to be necessary to specifically fulfill a public health, safety or welfare concern.  Pursuant to 
A.R.S. § 41-1093.02 and A.R.S. § 41-1093.03, you have the right to petition this agency to repeal or modify 
the occupational regulation or bring an action in a court of general jurisdiction to challenge the occupational 
regulation and to ensure compliance with A.R.S. § 41-1093.01.   
 
If you have any questions, I can be reached at (602) 542-1617. 
 



Sincerely, 
 

 
 
Tobi Zavala 
Executive Director 
 
 




